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Grant-Lee Hall is located on the campus of Lincoln Memorial University in Harrogate, 
Claiborne County. Originally constructed in 1892, the building burned in 1909 and 
was rebuilt in 1917 upon part of the existing limestone foundation. When reconstructed, 
the building was reduced from its original length of 300 feet to its present size of 
about 20,000 square feet, approximately one-half of its former area. Today, Grant-Lee 
Hall is a two and one-half story masonry building on a limestone foundation. Situated 
on a sloping site, the basement is entirely above ground on the lower(south elevation) 
level. The first story walls are stone, while the second story and gables are brick. 
The west elevation is embellished with a stone arcade and projecting curved sunroom, 
while the east elevation includes a massive curved exterior stairway and terrace. The 
arcade, Romanesque-style arches and massive stonework show the influence of the Roman­ 
esque Revival. A stone belt course separates the lower stone level from the upper brick 
story and provides a strong horizontal line to the building. This effect is enhanced 
by the regular window rhythm repeated in both theT stone and brick stories and echoed 
in the smaller, but repetitive windows in the gables. The strong horizontal lines are 
broken by occasional projecting pavilions and by several brick chimney stacks which 
tower above the blue-gray slate roof.

The interior of the building was gutted by fire in 1950 and has been altered repeatedly 
since that date. The university has plans to extensively remodel the building again in 
the near future.
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Situated on a seventy- two acre campus, Lincoln Memorial University has nineteen buildings 
and structures of which Grant-Lee Hall occupies the most prominent position. The 
building's antecedents trace to the construction in 1892 of a sanitarium, operated in 
connection with the nearby ^ur Seasons resprtr hotel which was razed in 1897. At that 
time the sanitarium was purchased by the backers of ''the" university anci Became 1 the first 
building used in its development. In 1909 this building burned, but a portibh-'or" its 
foundation was used when Grant-Lee Hall was constructed in 1917. In the early years, 
all of the University's activities were housed in Grant-Lee. Dormitories, classroom 
space, cafeteria, laboratory, administrative offices, and the President's residence were 
maintained in that facility. In 1950 fire destroyed a major part of the interior of 
the building. after which it was redesigned to serve asa residence hall, including two 
apartments utilized by head residents.

More recently, until December of 1977, the facility was used for college housing with 
the exception of a period in the early 1970s when a major portion of the building was 
abandoned and the remainder was used for classroom and office space for the Pine Arts 
Division. A suite of offices was rented for a government education project. "

Grant-Lee Hall was the original building on the campus of Lincoln Memorial University. 
Reverend A. A. Myers, a Congregationalist minister, arrived in the Cumberland Gap area 
in 1890. He succeeded in opening the Harrow School, which was established for the 
purpose of providing elementary education to mountain youngsters. Reverend Myers, General 
O. O. Howard, and three others joined together in establishing Lincoln Memorial University 
This group, along with Robert F. Patterson, a Confederate veteran, became a board of 
directors and purchased the Four Seasons property. On February 12, 1897, the anniversary 
of Abraham Lincoln's birthday, the institution was chartered by the State of Tennessee.

It was natural for Lincoln to have deep affection for the people of this section. He was 
born in Kentucky, not more than a hundred miles from the present campus. Traditions point 
to its inception as a result of a special request made by the president to General Howard. 
In 1896, General Howard, at the invitation of Reverend Myers, presented a lecture at the 
Harrow School, and from this grew his efforts to establish a college for the mountain 
people.

Grant-Lee Hall is scheduled for remodeling. Architectural plans call for retention of 
the exterior of the building in its present condition, with the exception of changing 
window structures. The interior of the building will be completely gutted and replaced 
with steel/concrete inner structure. When completely remodeled, the building will be 
used as student housing and will continue to serve the present snd future needs of 
Lincoln Memorial University.
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